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Utilities and Transportation Commission 
Standard Inspection Report for Master Meter Systems 


Records Review and Field Inspection 


Form L – Master Meter Inspection Form Rev 3-2013 
 


 
A completed Standard Inspection Checklist, OQ Field Validation Protocol form and Cover Letter/Field Report are to be submitted 
to the Chief Engineer within 30 days from completion of the inspection.   
 


Inspection Report 
Docket Number 8312 
Inspector Name & 
Submit Date Anthony Dorrough (10/26/21) 


Chief Eng Name & 
Review/Date       


Operator Information 
Name of Operator: Mount Vernon Terrace Apartments OP ID #: 36954 
Name of Unit(s): Mount Vernon Terrace Apartments 
Records Location: 3106 S Mount Vernon St, Spokane WA – Office - Bldg. #3 
Date(s) of Last (unit) 
Inspection: 04/27/16 Inspection Date(s): 10/20/21 


 
Inspection Summary: 
 


This standard natural gas master meter (MM) inspection covered process and records review questions as well as a site 
review to determine current CP on the pipeline system. The last MM inspection was performed on 4/27/2016 with no 
recommended follow up actions. A verbal exit interview was conducted on 10/20/21 for the current inspection. 


 Dates, Activities and Locations:   
10/20- Mount Vernon Terrace Apts. (MVTA) MM Inspection (3106 S Mount Vernon St Spokane WA 99207-Office-Bldg.#3) 


 Summary of Significant Findings:  
[6] violations of federal or state code  
[1] area of concern identified 


Primary operator contacts/participants in the inspection: 


Irina Robinson | Owner/Operator | MVTA (509) 999-5366 Cell 


Recommended follow up actions: 


[AOC]-Staff recommends that MVTA get a qualified individual to perform a CP inspection as soon as practicable to 
determine whether this steel pipeline is adequately protected according to federal code and state standards. Staff took CP 
readings for the purpose of the inspection since there were no qualified MVTA representatives available, preliminary 
findings indicated CP was below acceptable levels.  


 
 


HQ Address: System/Unit Name & Address: 
3118 S Mount Vernon St, Spokane WA 99207 3118 S Mount Vernon St, Spokane WA 99207 


Co. Official: 
Phone No.: 
Fax No.: 
Emergency Phone No.: 


Irina Robinson Phone No.: 
Fax No.: 
Emergency Phone No.: 


(509) 999-5366 
            
            
            


Persons Interviewed Title Phone No. 
Irina Robinson Owner/Operator (509) 999-5366 
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Gas Supplier 
Year Installed (Range) 1973 Pipe Diameters (Range):4-


inch; 2-inch and 1-1/4-inch 
Material Type Sched 40 Steel Length of System: 1,425-ft 







 


Form L – Master Meter Inspection Form Rev 3-2013 
 


 
INSPECTION FORM S U N/A 


1.  191.5 Any incidents requiring telephonic reporting to the National Response Center    X 
2.  480-93-200(1) Telephonic Reports to UTC Pipeline Safety Incident Notification (Within 2 hours)    X X 
3.  480-93-200(2) Telephonic Reports to UTC Pipeline Safety Incident Notification (Within 24 hours) for;   X 
4.  480-93-200(4) 30 day written incident report provided to the commission?  WAC 480-93-200 (1) and (2).  


--- Q1-Q4 No incidents since last inspection.   X 
5.  


480-93-200(7) 


A copy of every Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (PHMSA) annual 
report required by U.S. Department of Transportation, Office of Pipeline Safety.  
Note: Master Meter operators not required to submit DOT From PHMSA F7100.1-1 
(192.11(b)) ---This is a Master Meter operator. 


  X 


6.  480-93-200(7)(b) File a  "Damage Prevention Statistics" Report ---No incidents since last inspection.   X 
7.  480-93-200(7)(c) File a construction defects and material failures report ---No new construction since last 


inspection   X 
8.  480-93-200(8) Provide emergency contact information to appropriate agencies,  X   
9.  480-93-013 Provide written Operator Qualification Plan for training, qualifying and certificating all 


employees and contractors      X   
10.  


192.739 


Copy of Local Gas Company’s Regulator Station annual inspection. Overpressure protection 
designed and installed where required?  (192.195) 
Note: PHMSA interpretation dated 7-23-92 MM ultimately responsible for requirements 
under 192.743.    


X 
 


 


11.  480-93-140 Service regulators installed, operated and maintained per manufacturers recommendation 
(where applicable).  X   


12.  
192.355 


Service regulator vents and relief vents must terminate outdoors, and the outdoor terminal 
must: (1)  Be rain and insect resistant; (2)  Be located at a place where gas from the vent can 
escape freely into the atmosphere and away from any opening into the building; and,(3)  Be 
protected from damage caused by submergence in areas where flooding may occur. 


X 
 


 


13.  192.616 Written Public Awareness procedure to provide its customers public awareness messages 
twice annually ---Delivered by hand to each tenant during HUD inspections. X   


14.  CFR Part 199 Copy of written Drug and Alcohol Plan and testing for all contractors. X   
15.  192.605(a) Procedural Manual Review – Operations and Maintenance (1 per yr/15 months)    X   
16.  192.615 Written Emergency Plan X   
17.  


192.617 


Written procedures for analyzing accidents and failures, including the selection of samples 
of the failed facility or equipment for laboratory examination, where appropriate, for the 
purpose of determining the causes of the failure and minimizing the possibility of a 
recurrence. 


X 
 


 


18.  192.605(a)  Appropriate parts of manuals kept at locations where O&M activities are conducted  X   
19.  480-93-018(3) Records, including maps and drawings updated within 6 months of completion of 


construction activity? Updated records made available to appropriate operations personnel?   X   
20.  192.619 Maximum Allowable Operating Pressure (MAOP) and operating pressures   X   
21.  


192.625  (f) 


Odorization of gas Note: Operators of master meter systems may comply with this 
requirement by- 
(1)  Receiving written verification from their gas source that the gas has the proper 
concentration of odorant; and 
(2)  Conducting periodic "sniff" tests at the extremities of the system to confirm that the gas 
contains odorant. ---No sniff tests since last inspection (5 years). 


 


 
 


X 
 


 


22.  480-93-188 Conducted the gas leak surveys in accordance with 480-93-188 and 192.723 ---No gas leak 
surveys since last inspection (5 years).  X  


23.  480-93-188(2) Gas detection instruments tested for accuracy/intervals   (Mfct recommended or monthly not 
to exceed 45 days) ---No record since last inspection.   X  


24.  192.747 Valve Maintenance – Distribution (1 per yr/15 months)  .74 ---There are no valves on this 
pipeline system.    X 
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INSPECTION FORM S U N/A 
25.  


192.455 


Systems that do not have cathodic protection (CP) on their steel service must do testing to 
determine if a corrosive environment exists.  If a corrosive environment exists, the Master 
Meter System must be cathodically protected in accordance with paragraph (a) (2) of this 
section. 192.465 (e). ---There is a series of 17-lb anodes placed on this pipeline system. 


X 
 


 


26.  
192.465 


Have annual cathodic protection surveys been conducted? If there is a anodic cathodic 
protection system is rectifier monitoring conducted 6 per yr/2½ months, .192465(b)?  Is 
there a sufficient number of test stations. 192.469. ---No cathodic protection surveys since 
last inspection (5 years). 


 
 
X  


27.  192.491 Annual Pipe-to-soil monitoring (1 per yr/15 months)   .465(a) ---No monitoring of any type 
since last inspection (5 years).  X  


28.  192.453 CP carried out by qualified person: design, installation, operation, and maintenance ---No 
CP was carried out since last inspection (5 years).    X 


29.  480-93-110(8) CP test reading on all exposed facilities where coating has been removed ---No exposed 
facilities.   X 


30.  480-93-110(3) CP equipment/ instrumentation maintained, tested for accuracy and calibrated. ---No CP 
equipment available to MVTA since last inspection.   X 


31.  192.481 Atmospheric Corrosion: monitoring ---No atmospheric corrosion monitoring since last 
inspection (5 years).  X  


32.  192.721 Patrols conducted as required ---No patrols since last inspection (5 years).   X  
33.  192.1015 Was the Master Meter IMP program developed and implemented on or before August 2, 


2011? X   
34.  


480-93-018 


Maintain records sufficient to demonstrate compliance with all requirements of 49 CFR § 
191, 192 and chapter 480-93 WAC: give the commission access to records for review during 
an inspection and must provide the commission copies of records upon request: update its 
records within six months of when it completes any construction activity and make such 
records available to appropriate company operations personnel. ---No records maintained 
since last inspection (5 years).  


 


 
 
X  


35.       
36.       
37.  480-93-250 Each gas pipeline company must comply with chapter 19.122 RCW, including: 


(1)  Subscribe to the appropriate one-number locator service; X   
 
Applicable Gas Pipeline Safety Advisory Bulletins: (Last 2 years) 
 
Number   Date      Subject 
ADB-10-07  August 31, 2010  Liquefied Natural Gas Facilities:  Obtaining Approval of Alternative Vapor-


Gas Dispersion Models 
ADB-10-08  November 3, 2010 Pipeline Safety: Emergency Preparedness Communications 
ADB-11-01 January 4, 2011 Pipeline Safety: Establishing Maximum Allowable Operating Pressure or 


 Maximum Operating Pressure Using Record Evidence, and Integrity 
 Management Risk Identification, Assessment, Prevention, and Mitigation 


ADB-11-02 February 9, 2011  Dangers of Abnormal Snow and Ice Build-up on Gas Distribution Systems 
 
 
 
For more PHMSA Advisory Bulletins, go to http://ops.dot.gov/regs/advise.htm 
 



http://ops.dot.gov/regs/advise.htm






 
 


STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 


UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 


621 Woodland Square Loop S.E. ● Lacey, Washington 98503 


 P.O. Box 47250 ● Olympia, Washington 98504-7250 


(360) 664-1160 ● TTY 1-800-833-6384 or 711 


Respect. Professionalism. Integrity. Accountability. 


 


 
Sent via email 
 
November 16, 2021 
  
 
Irina Robinson 
Owner 
Mount Vernon Terrace Apartments  
3118 South Mount Vernon Street  
Spokane, WA 99223  
 
RE:  2021 Natural Gas Master Meter Standard Inspection – Mount Vernon Terrace Apts – (Insp. 


No. 8312) 
 
Dear Ms. Robinson:  
 
Thank you for your response, dated November 5, 2021, addressing the findings of our natural gas master 
meter inspection of Mount Vernon Terrace Apts (MVTA). This inspection identified six (6) probable 
violations of state and/or federal pipeline safety rules.  
 
Your response noted that MVTA was currently under contract with Affordable Housing Group IV LLC 
(SP) who intends to purchase MVTA in early 2022. You also noted that after the purchase Affordable 
Housing Group agreed to work towards eliminating the existing master meter pipeline system in 
accordance with the existing plan proposed by Avista and MVTA.  
 
To address the Area of Concern noted in the results letter, staff requests that MVTA coordinates for a 
qualified individual to conduct a cathodic protection (CP) survey of the entire pipeline system. If CP on 
the pipeline is found to be below standards MVTA must bring CP levels into compliance as soon as 
practicable. Staff will follow up with MVTA to ensure this survey happens in a timely manner.  
 
Staff thanks MVTA’s personnel for their cooperation and assistance during this inspection.  
 
If you have any questions or if we may be of any assistance, please contact Anthony Dorrough at (360) 
481-4035.  
    
Sincerely, 
 
 


Sean C. Mayo 


Pipeline Safety Director 





		RE:  2021 Natural Gas Master Meter Standard Inspection – Mount Vernon Terrace Apts – (Insp. No. 8312)

		Sean C. Mayo





				2021-11-16T13:25:08-0800

		Mayo, Sean (UTC)












 
 


STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 


UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 


621 Woodland Square Loop S.E. ● Lacey, Washington 98503 
 P.O. Box 47250 ● Olympia, Washington 98504-7250 


(360) 664-1160 ● TTY 1-800-833-6384 or 711 
 
Sent via email 
 
November 4, 2021 
 
Irina Robinson 
Owner  
Mount Vernon Terrace Apartments 
3118 South Mount Vernon Street 
Spokane, WA 99223 
 
RE:  2021 Natural Gas Master Meter Standard Inspection – Mount Vernon Terrace Apts. 


– (Insp. No. 8312) 
 
Dear Ms. Robinson: 


 
Staff from the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (staff) conducted a standard 
inspection of the Mount Vernon Terrace Apts. (MVTA) Master Meter (MM) pipeline system on 
Oct. 20, 2021.  This inspection included a program, procedures and records review and a 
cathodic protection (CP) verification of the pipeline.  
 
Our inspection indicates 6 probable violation(s) and one area of concern as noted in the enclosed 
report, which unless corrected, could potentially lead to future violation of state and/or federal 
pipeline safety rules. 
 
Your response needed 
Please review the attached report and respond in writing by December 6. The response should 
include how and when you plan to bring the probable violations into full compliance.  
 
What happens after you respond to this letter? 
The attached report presents staff’s decision on probable violations and does not constitute a 
finding of violation by the commission at this time. 
 
After you respond in writing to this letter, there are several possible actions the commission, in 
its discretion, may take with respect to this matter. For example, the commission may: 


• Issue an administrative penalty under RCW 81.04.405; or 
• Issue a complaint under RCW 81.88.040, seeking monetary penalties, changes in the 


company’s practices, or other relief authorized by law, and justified by the circumstances. 
Any pipeline company that violates any pipeline safety provision of any commission 



http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=81.04.405

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=81.88.040





order, or any rule in this chapter including those rules adopted by reference, or chapter 
81.88 RCW is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $218,647 for each violation for 
each day that the violation persists. The maximum civil penalty for a related series of 
violations is $2,186,465; or 


• Consider the matter resolved without further commission action.   
 
We have not yet decided whether to pursue a penalty or complaint in this matter. Should the 
commission decide to assess a penalty or initiate a complaint, your company will have an 
opportunity to respond and formally present its position. 
 
If you have any questions or if we may be of any assistance, please contact Anthony Dorrough at 
(360) 481-4035. Please refer to the subject matter described above in any future correspondence 
pertaining to this inspection. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sean C. Mayo 
Pipeline Safety Director 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
  



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=81.88





 UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
2021 Natural Gas Master Meter Standard Inspection  


Mount Vernon Terrace Apts. 
 


The following probable violation(s) of Title 49 CFR Part 192.465, .481, .491, .721, and 
WAC 480-93-018, and 480-93-188 were noted as a result of this inspection of the Mount 
Vernon Terrace Apts. (MVTA) Master Meter (MM) pipeline system. The inspection 
included a program, procedures and records review and a cathodic protection (CP) verification 
of the pipeline.  
 


PROBABLE VIOLATIONS 
 


1. 49 CFR §192.465 External corrosion control: Monitoring. 
(a) Each pipeline that is under cathodic protection must be tested at least once each 
calendar year, but with intervals not exceeding 15 months, to determine whether the 
cathodic protection meets the requirements of § 192.463. However, if tests at those 
intervals are impractical for separately protected short sections of mains or transmission 
lines, not in excess of 100 feet (30 meters), or separately protected service lines, these 
pipelines may be surveyed on a sampling basis. At least 10 percent of these protected 
structures, distributed over the entire system must be surveyed each calendar year, with a 
different 10 percent checked each subsequent year, so that the entire system is tested in 
each 10-year period. 
 
Finding(s): 


MVTA did not provide staff with any records to support any external 
corrosion control monitoring since last the inspection (5 years).  


 
2. 49 CFR §192.481 Atmospheric corrosion control: Monitoring. 


(a) Each operator must inspect and evaluate each pipeline or portion of the pipeline that 
is exposed to the atmosphere for evidence of atmospheric corrosion, as follows: 


Pipeline type: Then the frequency of inspection is: 


(1) Onshore other than 
a Service Line 


At least once every 3 calendar years, but with intervals not 
exceeding 39 months. 


(2) Onshore Service 
Line 


At least once every 5 calendar years, but with intervals not 
exceeding 63 months, except as provided in paragraph 
(d) of this section. 



https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=81487cab41696e9f90a6ba92136d4fff&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.465

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=f023bd69350c0af6a174c93f2236f0eb&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.465

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/192.463

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=f023bd69350c0af6a174c93f2236f0eb&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.465

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c66ca48b654241eac3d92d03b71796a4&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.465

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=906860f6608237382b2b18818dc14804&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.465

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=f023bd69350c0af6a174c93f2236f0eb&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.465

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=7ca0b2b29f87a4a115f5fb8d799dcc59&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=81487cab41696e9f90a6ba92136d4fff&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=81487cab41696e9f90a6ba92136d4fff&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/192.481#d

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/192.481#d





(3) Offshore At least once each calendar year, but with intervals not 
exceeding 15 months. 


(b) During inspections the operator must give particular attention to pipe at soil-to-air 
interfaces, under thermal insulation, under disbonded coatings, at pipe supports, in 
splash zones, at deck penetrations, and in spans over water. 


(c) If atmospheric corrosion is found during an inspection, the operator must provide 
protection against the corrosion as required by § 192.479. 


(d) If atmospheric corrosion is found on a service line during the most recent inspection, 
then the next inspection of that pipeline or portion of pipeline must be within 3 calendar 
years, but with intervals not exceeding 39 months. 


Finding(s): 
MVTA did not provide staff with any records to support any atmospheric corrosion 
control monitoring since the last inspection.  


 
3. 49 CFR §192.491(c) Corrosion control records. 


(c) Each operator shall maintain a record of each test, survey, or inspection required by 
this subpart in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of corrosion control 
measures or that a corrosive condition does not exist. These records must be retained for 
at least 5 years with the following exceptions: 
(1) Operators must retain records related to §§ 192.465(a) and (e) and 192.475(b) for as 
long as the pipeline remains in service. 


(2) Operators must retain records of the two most recent atmospheric corrosion 
inspections for each distribution service line that is being inspected under the interval 
in § 192.481(a)(2). 


Finding(s): 
MTVA did not provide staff with any records to support there were any required tests, 
surveys or inspections that demonstrated the adequacy of corrosion control measures or 
that a corrosive condition did not exist since the last inspection.  


 
4. 49 CFR §192.721 Distribution systems: Patrolling.  


(a) The frequency of patrolling mains must be determined by the severity of the 
conditions which could cause failure or leakage, and the consequent hazards to public 
safety. 


(b) Mains in places or on structures where anticipated physical movement or external 
loading could cause failure or leakage must be patrolled - 


(1) In business districts, at intervals not exceeding 4 1/2 months, but at least four times 
each calendar year; and 


(2) Outside business districts, at intervals not exceeding 7 1/2 months, but at least twice 
each calendar year. 



https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=7ca0b2b29f87a4a115f5fb8d799dcc59&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=aefc9c4ae134c6e7d8a5991ca806625f&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=aefc9c4ae134c6e7d8a5991ca806625f&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=7ca0b2b29f87a4a115f5fb8d799dcc59&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/192.479

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0d1f4b6cbd2782ae4add4d5af1fdfa25&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=81487cab41696e9f90a6ba92136d4fff&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=81487cab41696e9f90a6ba92136d4fff&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.481

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=7ca0b2b29f87a4a115f5fb8d799dcc59&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.491

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=7ca0b2b29f87a4a115f5fb8d799dcc59&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.491

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/192.465#a

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=81487cab41696e9f90a6ba92136d4fff&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.491

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=7ca0b2b29f87a4a115f5fb8d799dcc59&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.491

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0d1f4b6cbd2782ae4add4d5af1fdfa25&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:I:192.491

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/192.481#a_2

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c66ca48b654241eac3d92d03b71796a4&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:M:192.721

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c66ca48b654241eac3d92d03b71796a4&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:49:Subtitle:B:Chapter:I:Subchapter:D:Part:192:Subpart:M:192.721





Finding(s): 
MVTA did not provide staff with any records to support that there was any type of 
patrolling since the last inspection.  


 
5. WAC 480-93-018 Records 


(1) Each gas pipeline company must maintain records sufficient to demonstrate 
compliance with all requirements of 49 C.F.R. §§ 191, 192 and chapter 480-93 WAC. 
(2) Each gas pipeline company must give the commission access to records for review 
during an inspection and must provide the commission copies of records upon request. 
(3) Each gas pipeline company must maintain a list of forms and databases, including 
examples where applicable, that specify what records the company maintains. Each gas 
pipeline company must make this list available to the commission upon request. 
(4) Each gas pipeline company must record and maintain records of the actual value of 
any required reads, tests, surveys or inspections performed. The records must include the 
name of the person who performed the work and the date the work was performed. The 
records must also contain information sufficient to determine the location and facilities 
involved. Examples of the values to be recorded include, but are not limited to, pipe to 
soil potential reads, rectifier reads, pressure test levels, and combustible gas indicator 
reads. A gas pipeline company may not record a range of values unless the measuring 
device being used provides only a range of values. 
(5) Each gas pipeline company must update its records within six months of when it 
completes any construction activity and make such records available to appropriate 
company operations personnel. 
(6) If a gas pipeline company believes a record provided to the commission is 
confidential as that term is defined in WAC 480-07-160(2), the gas pipeline company 
must follow the procedures in WAC 480-07-160 for designating and treating that record 
as confidential. 


 
Finding(s): 
Although MTVA verbally indicated that some testing, surveying, patrolling and 
monitoring did take place mainly between the years 2017-2018, they could not provide 
staff with any records to support compliance with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. §§ 191, 
192 and WAC chapter 480-93 since the last inspection.  
 


6. WAC 480-93-188(3) Gas leak surveys 
(3) Each gas pipeline company must conduct gas leak surveys according to the following 
minimum frequencies: 
(a) Business districts - At least once annually, but not to exceed fifteen months between 
surveys. All mains in the right of way adjoining a business district must be included in the 
survey; 
(b) High occupancy structures or areas - At least once annually, but not to exceed fifteen 
months between surveys; 
(c) Gas pipelines operating at or above two hundred fifty psig - At least once annually, 
but not to exceed fifteen months between surveys; 



https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=480-93

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=480-07-160

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=480-07-160

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=480-93





(d) Where the gas system has cast iron, wrought iron, copper, or noncathodically 
protected steel - At least twice annually, but not to exceed seven and one-half months 
between surveys; and 
(e) Unodorized gas pipelines - At least monthly. 
 
Finding(s): 
MTVA did not provide staff with any records to support that any gas leak surveys were 
conducted since the last inspection.  


 
 


AREA OF CONCERN 
 


1. 49 CFR §192.463 External corrosion control: Cathodic protection  
(a) Each cathodic protection system required by this subpart must provide a level of 
cathodic protection that complies with one or more of the applicable criteria contained in 
Appendix D of this part. If none of these criteria is applicable, the cathodic protection 
system must provide a level of cathodic protection at least equal to that provided by 
compliance with one or more of these criteria. 


 
Finding(s): 
This pipeline does not appear to be adequately protected. Staff took CP readings for the 
purpose of this inspection since there were no qualified MVTA representatives available, 
and preliminary findings indicated CP was below acceptable levels.  


 





		Sent via email
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		Mayo, Sean (UTC)












               MOUNT VERNON TERRACE 


           3106 S MT VERNON #17, SPOKANE 


                      WA 99223 


   PHONE (509) 536-1168, FAX (509)532-1047 


11/04/2021 


 
        Response to 2021 Natural gas master meter inspection 


 


  Mount Vernon Terrace is working with 
Avista Utilities Company to eliminate gas master meter. 
Currently Mt Vernon is for sale. We are under contract with SP 
Affordable housing group IV LLC. Buyer is already in contact with 
Avista Company, and we a have plan to do separately metered 
apartments agreed with avista utilities. Because Mt Vernon is 
HUD property it takes more time to close. We plan to close in 
January-February2022. After closing the new owner will 
immediately start to proceed with converting master meter to 
separate meters and get rid of master meter. Avista already has 
a plan for MT Vernon conversion.  


 


 From 2004-2018 we had Raymond Allen 
perform inspections on our property annually. But in 2019 we 







never heard from nor call. When we tried to contact him, his 
phone was no longer in service. We did not know whom to call 
to get someone to perform inspections. Then Covid hit and no 
one was doing inspections, even HUD wouldn’t perform their 
inspections. Everything got shut down. When everything was 
shut down, we were still in contact with Avista Utilities about the 
master meter. Thank you for your inspection. Please let me know 
what we need to do to eliminate these violations.  


 


 


Best regards, Irina Robison 


Owner 


 


 


   
 





